
#plymplanning

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Thursday 29 June 2017
2.00 pm
Council House, Plymouth

Members:
Councillor Wigens, Chair
Councillor Mrs Bridgeman, Vice Chair
Councillors Ball, Cook, Sam Davey, Fletcher, Kelly, Mrs Pengelly, Sparling, Stevens, Kate Taylor, 
Tuohy and Winter.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 
Chamber, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 
recording for the webcast.

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Democratic and Member Support
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council
Ballard House
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ

Please ask for  Helen Rickman/Lynn 
Young
T 01752 398444/01752 304163
E helen.rickman@plymouth.gov.uk/
lynn.young@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy
Published 20 June 2017

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


Planning Committee

AGENDA

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING

1. Apologies  

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 

2. Declarations of Interest  

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 
agenda.

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)

The Committee will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 1 June 2017.

4. Chair's Urgent Business  

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 
forward for urgent consideration.

5. Questions from Members of the Public  

The Chair will receive and respond to questions from members of the public submitted in 
accordance with the Council’s procedures. Questions shall not normally exceed 50 
words in length and the total length of time allowed for public questions shall not exceed 
10 minutes. Any question not answered within the total time allowed shall be the subject 
of a written response.

6. Planning Applications for consideration  

The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure will submit a schedule 
asking Members to consider Applications, Development proposals by Local Authorities 
and statutory consultations under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

6.1. North West Quadrant, Derriford Road, Plymouth, 
PL6 8DH - 17/00105/FUL

(Pages 7 - 44)

Applicant: Mr Tony Christie
Ward:  Moorview
Recommendation: Grant Conditionally Subject to S106. 

Delegated authority to Assistant Director of 
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to 
refuse if S106 obligation is not signed in 



accordance with agreed
timeframes

Case Officer: Mr John Douglass

7. Planning Application Decisions Issued  (Pages 45 - 60)

The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, acting under powers 
delegated to him by the Council, will submit a schedule outlining all decisions issued since 
the last Committee, including –

1)  Committee decisions;
2)  Delegated decisions, subject to conditions where so indicated;
3)  Applications withdrawn;
4)  Applications returned as invalid.

Please note that these Delegated Planning Applications are available to view online at: 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp 

8. Appeal Decisions  (Pages 61 - 62)

A schedule of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate on appeals arising from the 
decision of the City Council will be submitted.  Please note that these Delegated Planning 
Applications are available to view online at: 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp




Planning Committee Thursday 1 June 2017

Planning Committee

Thursday 1 June 2017

PRESENT:

Councillor Wigens, in the Chair.
Councillor Mrs Bridgeman, Vice Chair.
Councillors Cook, Sam Davey, Fletcher, Fry (substitute for Councillor Ball), 
Dr Mahony (substitute for Councillor Kelly), Mrs Pengelly, Sparling, Stevens, Tuffin 
(substitute for Councillor Kate Taylor), Tuohy and Winter.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Ball, Kelly and Kate Taylor.

Also in attendance:  Peter Ford (Head of Development Management), Mark 
Lawrence (Lawyer) and Lynn Young (Democratic Support Officer).

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 5.08 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, 
so they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 
whether these minutes have been amended.

1. Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair  

The Committee noted the appointment of Councillor Wigens as Chair, and 
Councillor Mrs Bridgeman as Vice Chair of the Planning Committee for the 
municipal year 2017-2018.

2. Declarations of Interest  

The following declarations of interest were made in accordance with the code of 
conduct –

Name Minute Number 
and Item

Reason Interest

Councillor Mrs 
Bridgeman

9 – 436 Tavistock 
Road, Plymouth, 
PL6 7HQ – 
16/02351/FUL

Ward councillor, 
family live in close 
proximity and local 
residents known to 
her

Personal

Councillor Sam 
Davey

8 – Blake Lodge, 
Seymour Road, 
Mannamead, 
Plymouth, PL3 5AS 
– 16/02073/FUL

Donated a sum of 
money to the 
applicant under the 
Community Grant 
Scheme (in 
2016/17)

Personal



Planning Committee Thursday 1 June 2017

3. Minutes  

Agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 4 May 2017.

4. Chair's Urgent Business  

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

5. Questions from Members of the Public  

There were no questions from members of the public.

6. Planning Applications for consideration  

The Committee considered the following applications, development proposals by 
local authorities and statutory consultations submitted under the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990, and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act, 
1990.

7. 8 Boringdon Terrace, Plymouth, PL9 9TQ  17/00887/LBC  

Mr Ben Wilcox
Decision:
Application GRANTED conditionally.

8. Blake Lodge, Seymour Road, Mannamead, Plymouth, PL3 5AS  
16/02073/FUL  

Blake Lodge
Decision:
Application GRANTED conditionally.

(The Committee heard from Councillor Ball, ward councillor, speaking against this 
application

(The Committee heard representations against this application)

(The Committee heard from the applicant’s agent)

(A Planning Committee site visit was held on Wednesday 31 May 2017 in respect of 
this application)

(A brief adjournment of the meeting took place immediately after consideration of 
this item at 3.43 pm and the meeting reconvened at 3.50 pm)



Planning Committee Thursday 1 June 2017

9. 436 Tavistock Road, Plymouth, PL6 7HQ   16/02351/FUL  

Westcountry Land & Developments
Decision:
Application MINDED TO GRANT subject to a further seven day consultation on 
amended plans which will replace properties numbered 5-7 with bungalows, 
delegated to the Assistant Director for Strategic Planning & Infrastructure in 
consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition member for Planning.

(The Committee heard representations against this application)

(The Committee heard from the applicant’s agent)

(A Planning Committee site visit was held on Wednesday 31 May 2017 in respect of 
this application)

(Councillor Mrs Pengelly’s proposal to amend the officer’s recommendation to 
reflect the Committee being Minded to Grant the application, having been seconded 

by Councillor Cook, was put to the vote and declared carried)

(The meeting adjourned at 4.20 pm for officers to talk to the applicant’s agent 
regarding amended plans)

(The meeting reconvened at 4.25 pm)

10. Plymouth Speedway, St Boniface's College Sports Ground Coypool Road, 
Marsh Mills, Plymouth  17/00648/S73  

Mr M Phillips
Decision:
Application DEFERRED to allow further negotiation with the applicant regarding 
the proposed training operating hours and number of races per meeting.

Where satisfactory agreement is reached on the above matters, approval to be 
delegated to the Assistant Director for Strategic Planning & Infrastructure. Where 
agreement cannot be resolved, the application to be brought back to Committee for 
determination.

(The Committee heard from the applicant’s agent)

(Councillor Stevens’ proposal to defer the application, having been seconded by 
Councillor Mrs Pengelly, was put to the vote and declared carried)

11. Planning Application Decisions Issued  

The Committee noted the report from the Assistant Director for Strategic Planning 
and Infrastructure on decisions issued for the period 24 April 2017 to 18 May 2017.



Planning Committee Thursday 1 June 2017

12. Appeal Decisions  

The Committee noted the schedule of appeal decisions made by the Planning 
Inspectorate.

***Please note***

A schedule of voting relating to the meeting is attached as a supplement to these 
minutes.



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 1 June 2017 

 

SCHEDULE OF VOTING 
 

Minute number and 

Application 

Voting for  Voting 

against 

Abstained Absent due 

to interest 

declared 

Absent 

7 8 Boringdon Terrace, 

Plymouth, PL9 9TQ  

17/00887/LBC 

 

 

Unanimous     

8 Blake Lodge, Seymour 

Road, Mannamead, 

Plymouth, PL3 5AS  

16/02073/FUL 

 

 

Councillors 

Cook, Sam 

Davey, 

Sparling, 

Stevens, 

Tuffin, Tuohy 

and Winter 

Councillors 

Mrs 

Bridgeman, 

Fletcher, Fry, 

Dr Mahony, 

Mrs Pengelly 

and Wigens 

   

9 436 Tavistock Road, 

Plymouth, PL6 7HQ   

16/02351/FUL 

 
Amended 

recommendation – 

Minded to Grant 

 

 

Unanimous      

10 Plymouth Speedway, St 

Boniface's College 

Sports Ground 

Coypool Road, Marsh 

Mills, Plymouth  

17/00648/S73 

 

Amended 

recommendation - 

Defer 

Councillors 

Mrs 

Bridgeman, 

Cook, 

Fletcher, Fry, 

Dr Mahony, 

Mrs Pengelly, 

Sparling, 

Stevens, 

Tuffin, Tuohy, 

Wigens and 

Winter 

 Councillor 

Sam Davey 

  

 





PLANNING APPLICATION 

OFFICERS REPORT

Site Address North West Quadrant, Derriford Road  Plymouth  PL6 8DH      

Proposal 

Demolition of substation and erection of multi-storey car park 

(including Class A1-A5 retail space) and office building (Class B1), 

together with extension to Roscoff/ Campus Lane, landscaping and 

associated works.

Applicant Mr Tony Christie

Application Type Full Application

Target Date    02.05.2017
Committee 

Date 
29.06.2017 

Extended Target Date 03.07.2017 

Decision Category Assistant Director of SPI

Case Officer Mr John Douglass

Recommendation 

Grant Conditionally Subject to S106. Delegated authority to 

Assistant Director of Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to refuse 

if S106 obligation is not signed in accordance with agreed 

timeframes 

Application 

Number   
17/00105/FUL Item 02 

Date Valid 31.01.2017 Ward MOORVIEW



The application has been referred to committee by the Assistant Director for Strategic 

Planning and Infrastructure for public interest reasons. 

1.  Description of Site

The site comprises part of the large site known as North West Quadrant which lies between 

the hospital and Derriford Roundabout.  The site was sold by the hospital in 2011 and 

following interim ownership by Wharfside Properties (Devon) Ltd was acquired in 2015 by 

AVIVA Investors Pensions Ltd.   

Throughout this report the site is referred to as NWQ and the Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

as PHNT.  



The Rowans building to the north of the site has recently been refurbished and remains in 

use as a health facility by PHNT. The remainder of former healthcare buildings on the site 

have been cleared, leaving the site comprising largely of informal (gravel or similar) 

hardstanding, large parts of which are used as car parking for staff and visitors to the 

hospital.  Significant mature trees and hedgerows are retained in places across the site, with 

more formal managed planting on the north eastern boundary and a Devon Bank wall 

around the northern boundary to Derriford Rd. Access to the Rowans and to staff parking 

areas is via Hospital Drive from Derriford Road.  Vehicles entering or leaving the site via the 

single-lane Morlaix Drive can also cross the hospital Campus on Hospital Drive to access the 

parking area via the existing route (which is referred to as ‘Main St’ in the draft site-wide 

masterplan). 

The wider site slopes fairly steeply from the north (Derriford Road) to the South (Morlaix 

Drive).   

The application site is the most southern part of the NWQ site between the existing 

multistorey car park (formally known as Bircham Park, but commonly referred to as MSCP1), 

and land owned and operated by the Ambulance Trust.  The site comprises a tarmac parking 

area to the north, which is currently unused and an unused hardstanding to the south 

(separated by a large hedgerow).  Further south close to the southern boundary of the site 

(Morlaix Drive) is an electricity substation (to be demolished) and a mature Plymouth Pear, 

which is a rare tree protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act of 1981.  The street to 

the north of existing car park MSCP1 is known as ‘Roscoff’. 

2.  Proposal Description

The proposal is for the construction of a split level 600-space multi-storey car park (MSCP2) 

with parking over 10 storeys (19 levels), and an office building of 4689 sq m GIA (3579 sq m 

NIA) with accommodation over 6 floors plus lower ground floor.   

The applicant proposes to construct the office in order to accommodate PHNT staff who 

intend to vacate the former Norwich Union building to the south west of the site (which lies 

outside the applicant’s ownership). 

The submitted Transport Assessment confirms that the new MSCP 2 will be for hospital staff 

use only, and will also provide 110 cycle parking spaces.   

The buildings are separated at ground floor by a plaza space which extends to the east 

underneath the office, splitting the ground and first floors of the office building into two 

separate sections (north and south).  Although the office is separated from the existing 

‘Bircham Park’ car park (‘MSCP1’) by a linear north-south open space, a pedestrian bridge 

links the proposed plaza space to the existing terrace on the west side of MSCP1.    It would 

therefore be possible to walk from MSCP2 across the plaza, through the office building and 

over the bridge to MSCP1.   



Although the office is split into two elements at ground floor, above this it comprises a single 

floorplan accessed by two cores (one with lifts).  The main pedestrian access to the offices is 

via a door on the north elevation facing the street, but there are also entrances from the 

plaza.   The plaza itself is accessed ‘at grade’ from the footway of the proposed new street to 

the north ‘Campus Lane’, but can also be accessed by two sets of steps built into the 

landscaping scheme – one from the south between MSCP2 and the office, and one from the 

linear planting area which joins the plaza in the covered foyer area between the north and 

south office spaces. 

The main pedestrian entrance/exits to MSCP2 are to Campus Lane at the north and to the 

plaza at the south, with a third to the plaza further north. 

Vehicular access to MSCP2 will be from the north via an extension to Roscoff/Campus Lane.  

Two inbound lanes and one outbound lane are proposed.   16 disabled spaces are 

immediately accessible from the plaza, with a further two at the next level, where 6 

motorcycle spaces are also proposed. 

In the basement of the office building (alongside plant rooms) cycle parking is proposed in a 

secure store, with access to male and female toilets/showers.  A small bicycle shop is also 

proposed.  MSCP2 includes a retail unit of 118 sq m facing campus Lane.  Bin storage and 

plant space is also proposed alongside the main vehicle entrance (and a further plant room is 

provided on the top floor of the office building). 

The office building steps down the slope from Campus Lane to Morlaix Drive such that it is 6 

storeys where it faces each (but has 7 storeys of accommodation in places).  Although 

offering 9-10 floors of parking, the car park is the same height.  The majority of the roofs of 

both buildings would feature green roofs, with a small accessible terrace facing south on the 

office roof, and solar PV over the green roof on the car park roof. 

Externally, the office is proposed to be clad in an aluminium rainscreen cladding with full 

height fixed glazing and openable aluminium cladding panels,  aluminium curtain walling 

and aluminium shopfront.  MSCP2 will feature an exposed concrete frame clad with timber 

log screens.  Details of both are shown on the ‘façade detail’ drawing.  Climbing plants are 

also proposed to create a green façade on the south side of the office at lower ground floor. 

The landscape strategy for the wider site is to connect buildings and facilities by way of a 

series of routes.  The E-W routes are flatter and are therefore the primary routes that carry 

vehicular traffic alongside walking and cycling on generous footways.  The proposal includes 

the creation of a new footway along the north side of Roscoff and a crossing point opposite 

the ravine garden to allow Roscoff to be crossed. 

Steeper north-south routes across the masterplan area are to be designed primarily for 

pedestrians as linear garden spaces.  Planting within the current application is primarily 

within the proposed linear garden space between the two car parks, where a fully accessible 

walking route links Morlaix Drive and Campus Lane as well as providing opportunities for 



seating and relaxation.  At the entrance to this space from Morlaix Drive the Plymouth Pear 

Tree would be protected. 

The scheme involves the loss of several trees, including two identified to be of the highest 

quality (category A) and a significant hedgerow including several category B trees.  A number 

of lower quality category C trees would also be lost.  By way of compensation, 51 new trees 

are proposed.  The full details of these are set out in a letter from the applicant’s agent dated 

22 May, which is available on the planning website. 

3. Pre-application enquiry

Pre-application advice was given under reference 16/01671/MAJ.  This pre-application 

enquiry initially considered a masterplan and proposals for a wider development across the 

‘North West Quadrant’ site.  Advice was given on transport and design matters relating to a 

draft masterplan, as well as high level advice on matters such as surface water, trees and 

ecology.  The relationship between the proposals and the emerging JLP ‘Derriford 

Commercial Centre’ was also discussed.  At the time the applicant intended to pursue a 

comprehensive (outline or hybrid) application process.  The applicant has subsequently 

decided to pursue individual applications on the North West Quadrant, resulting in this 

application. 

During the pre-application enquiry both the masterplan and detailed proposals for MSCP2 

(that have evolved into the current application) were presented to the Creating Excellence 

Design Review Panel.   Although the panel requested further information and justification on 

aspects of the masterplan, they were generally supportive of the car park and office 

proposals. Panel comments suggesting the rationalisation of the car park (including the 

potential for reliance on a single access), and the desirability of an active use facing Campus 

Lane have been incorporated into the scheme. 

4. Relevant planning history

A major mixed-use, retail-led outline application for the site was submitted in 2009 

(09/01899/OUT).  The key consideration at the time was whether the application was capable 

of delivering the Derriford District Centre envisaged by Core Strategy policy CS07 and Area 

Vision 9, and by the Derriford and Seaton Area Action Plan which was emerging at the time.  

Following refusal of the application, an appeal was lodged and heard by a major public 

inquiry.  The Secretary of State dismissed the appeal and upheld the Local Planning 

Authority’s refusal in August 2013. 

In parallel with 09/01899/OUT, a full planning application (08/01418/FUL) for a multi-storey 

car park (MSCP1/Bircham Park) was submitted.  Following several revisions, the car park now 

constructed on site as that permitted by 12/00961/FUL on 23 August 2012. 

During the ongoing pre-application enquiry for site-wide development, a request to protect 

trees on the site was received from the Hospital Environment Group.  Site-wide TPO 

(reference 510) was implemented in July 2016. 



Two further planning applications for development on the site have recently been received: 

17/01166/FUL (which follows pre-application enquiry 17/00615/MAJ) proposes: ‘…erection of 

a Planned Care Centre, together with retail space (A1-A5), servicing provision, landscaping, 

roads and other infrastructure works". The application proposes construction on the site to 

the north of Roscoff and Campus Lane (to the north of the current application site and of 

MSCP1).  The application is not yet valid. 

17/01173/FUL seeks a ‘time-limited planning permission for the erection of a Cardiology Unit 

together with planting and other infrastructure works’ on land in the north eastern corner of 

the site.  The application is not yet valid. 

5. Consultation responses

Economic Development 

Supports this application in respect of its significant commercial floorspace and parking 

contributions to the economic growth of the area. 

South West Water 

Provides a plan of the water main (which will need to be diverted at the applicant’s expense); 

notes with reference to the drainage hierarchy that the proposal to dispose of surface water 

drainage by infiltration is acceptable; and requests a planning condition as follows:  

Foul drainage from the Development (and no other drainage) shall be connected to the 

public foul or combined sewer. 

Reason:  

To ensure the discharge of drainage from the Development shall not be prejudicial to the 

public sewerage system and ensure there are adequate public foul sewerage facilities to 

receive foul water flows, in order to safeguard the public and environment. 

Lead Local Flood Authority 

No objection following clarifications received subject to conditions securing further detailed 

information. 

Environment Agency 

No objection subject to a condition to control any unsuspected contamination found during 

development. 

Highway Authority 

Interim comments raised a number of queries in response to which further information has 

been submitted.  Following receipt of further updated information a final comment is 

awaited. 

Public Health 

No objections 



Public Protection Service 

No objection subject to conditions / advices covering: i/ the need for toilets in any 

establishment where the public are invited to sit and eat; control of noise from any 

(ventilation) plant and equipment; odour control in ventilation systems. 

Urban Design Officer  

No objection.  Following receipt of further information all previous queries have been 

resolved.  Conditions are suggested to cover the following aspects of the scheme: external 

building envelope materials, full hard and soft landscape details (including street furniture, 

Plymouth Pear interpretation panel,  roadside planting margin, raised beds including  

irrigation details, and tree pits - minimum 12 cu m of root infrastructure per tree), and 

landscape management plan. 

Low Carbon Team  

Initially objected to the proposal but no further objection raised subject to conditions and 

S106 obligation as recommended which secure the Solar Photovoltaic (PV) panels offered 

and ensure that the office will be capable of future connection to a District Heating network, 

together with a financial contribution towards the establishment of a local District Heat 

network in lieu of further PV which would be necessary to meet the policy requirement fully. 

Historic Environment  

No further archaeological investigation is necessary. 

Natural Infrastructure Team 

The Tree Officer accepts the updated justification for the removal of trees, noting in 

particular that the woodland area is an important site feature which has a better chance of 

survival than the isolated trees (the Woodland area would be affected by revisions to retain 

the two trees). The site-wide Tree Strategy must, however, be implemented.  The Ecological 

Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy (EMES) is considered acceptable. 

Conditions are recommended to secure an Arboricultural method statement for works 

around Plymouth Pear (ref 334) and 3 Limes (ref 337a, b & c);  protection of retained trees; a 

Construction Environment Management Plan; details of soft landscaping; Implementation of 

the submitted ecological appraisal; and a Landscape management plan. 

6. Representations

A total of 9 objections have been received.   

Issues raised are as follows: 

Parking Provision  

• Support for additional car parking (subject to access issues) 

• Objection to additional parking (for sustainable transport reasons) 



• Parking capacity in the surrounding area should be independently assessed and the 

car park sized appropriately 

• The size of the car park should be maximised as demand for parking will continue to 

increase (people will always use their cars to get to work as there is no realistic alternative) 

• The new car park should be for both visitor and staff use  

Access and Vehicle Routing 

• Access to the site must first be resolved to tackle congestion and avoid further traffic 

flow through the hospital campus.   

• Some objectors call for a separate access to the site. Suggestions include the widening 

of Morlaix Drive, or a new access from the west or north west. 

• The additional demand for car parking could jeopardise the Council’s intentions to 

provide an effective public transport link via Morlaix Drive – the two proposals must be 

aligned 

Sustainable Transport 

• Objection to another car park – there are a huge number of unnecessary car journeys 

made and alternatives including buses and the expansion of the park and ride scheme should 

be prioritised to keep routes free for those who need to travel on the road (including 

emergency services) 

• Additional electric car charging points should be added as the 8 existing charging 

points are full by very early in the morning. 

• Resources for cyclist and pedestrians should be augmented 

Trees and Landscaping 

• The copse of trees separating the hospital from NWQ should be retained [this is 

largely outside the application site] 

• As many mature trees as possible should be retained – especially the isolated stand of 

four at the north edge of the site.  Trees are the only natural features on an otherwise barren 

site and are a valuable ecological asset 

• As much tree planting as possible should be encouraged to screen hospital buildings 

• The proposal’s landscaping intent is acknowledged as laudable 

Development Approach 

• Development proposals for the site should be comprehensive to avoid problems likely 

from an incremental approach 

• The plan needs proper consultation 

The Hospital Environment Group (HEG) has also submitted a formal objection prepared 

jointly with senior management of PHNT. 

HEG / PHNT object to the application in its present form because access to the new 

development will increase the flow of private cars and congestion in the Hospital grounds, 

and there is concern that the hospital site could become a major through route.  They raise 

concerns that the facility will accommodate cars that currently park off-site in the grounds of 

the Norwich Union / Lone Eagle building facing Brest Rd, and will therefore bring them 



through the campus.  They call for a new access from the west to cater for both multi-storey 

car parks, and for access from the East and Morlaix Drive to be discontinued.  They would 

also encourage the car park capacity to be increased to relieve pressure on the main hospital 

site, noting that it is designed only to cater for enough cars to facilitate further development 

of the NWQ site. 

Concerns are raised about the phased approach to development and lack of a site-wide 

Environmental Impact Assessment.  They also refer to their representation made to the JLP, 

which supported the wider development plans subject to separate vehicle access, 

preservation of the copse of trees and the provision of narrow road to create a pedestrian 

friendly environment 

The green space, disabled parking, cycle and showers are however welcomed. 

7. Relevant Policy Framework

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 

development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of 

the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in 

accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy 

(Adopted April 2007) and [to be completed depending on location of development and 

whether there are any other DPDs in place such as AAPs and Waste DPD].   

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the Core Strategy 

and other Plymouth Development Plan Documents as the statutory development plan for 

Plymouth once it is formally adopted. 

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on 

determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.   

·        For Plymouth’s current development plan documents, due weight should be given to 

relevant policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the 

policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be 

given).  

·        For the JLP which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined by 

the stage of its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections, and its 

degree of consistency with the Framework. 

The JLP is at an advanced stage of preparation having now been subject to a six-week period 

for representations, pursuant to Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations.  It is also considered consistent with the policies of the 

Framework, as well as based on up to date evidence.  It is therefore considered that the JLP’s 

policies have the potential to carry significant weight within the planning decision if there are 



no substantive unresolved objections.  However, the precise weight will need to be 

determined on a case by case basis, having regard to all of the material considerations as 

well as the nature and extent of any unresolved objections on the relevant plan policies. 

Other material considerations include the policies of the Framework itself with guidance in 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG). Additionally, the following Supplementary 

Planning Documents are also material considerations in the determination of the application: 

Sustainable Design in Plymouth (adopted 2009); Development Guidelines (First Review, 

adopted 2013); Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing (Second Review, adopted 

2012). 

8. Analysis

1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the 

approved Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (from hereon referred to as the 

JLP), the Framework and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7. 

Principle of Uses

2. The spatial strategy for the city set out in the emerging JLP prioritise major growth in 

this area as one of Plymouth’s primary economic node in order to drive a step change in the 

economy and housing delivery and to focus on accessible transport corridors where genuine 

transport choices can be provided to support growth.  The Strategic Objective for this area in 

the emerging JLP also promotes a greater intensity of uses to create a walking and cycling 

environment.  As set out below, the proposal is considered fully in accordance with this 

strategy. 

3. The uses proposed are considered acceptable in principle.  The transport impacts are 

considered in detail later in this section of report, but in summary the car parking is 

proposed on the basis of no net increase and will be conditional upon other parking 

elsewhere on the site ceasing when this car park opens. 

4. The office is likely to be occupied by hospital staff but will not form part of the overall 

hospital use and must therefore be considered as a standalone office use in Use Class B1c.  

Similarly, although the retail uses proposed are relatively small their acceptability in principle 

must be considered against the policy tests set out in the NPPF, Core Strategy and emerging 

JLP. 

5. In recognition of the need for retail and main town centre uses (including offices) to 

be subject to a ‘sequential test’, the application is supported by an office and retail town 

centre uses report.  The sequential test is a requirement of NPPF policy 24; its purpose is to 

direct such uses towards locations designated by the development plan as town centres 

which are to be managed in order to remain ‘viable and vital’ hearts of communities.  

Guidance in the NPPG advises that application of the test should be proportionate and 

appropriate for the given proposal. 



6. The applicant’s statement refers to relevant paragraphs within the NPPF (24-26) as 

well as relevant policies of the Core Strategy (CS04, CS07) and emerging JLP. Although it 

notes that support for the proposal is drawn from the emerging JLP, it acknowledges that the 

site is presently outside a defined town centre.  Policy PLY38 of the JLP is a material 

consideration of some weight that supports the proposal, but objections to the policy 

relating to the location of the proposed centre have been received from promoters of 

alternative district centre sites and PLY38 alone cannot therefore justify the proposal.  Other 

factors of relevance, however, are the accessibility of the site in respect of its proximity to the 

public transport interchange outside the hospital, which is the second most accessible 

location in the city by bus (the NPPF considers office uses within 500m of a public transport 

interchange to be ‘edge of centre’ for the purposes of the sequential test).  Core Strategy 

policy CS04 also supports proposals for new commercial development in the Derriford area 

(to the extent that they are complementary to the primary role of the City Centre as a 

regional hub), such that the Derriford area is enabled to become Plymouth’s secondary office 

location.  Accompanying diagram 4 also identifies this location as one of two ‘key economic 

centres as part of bi-polar economy concept’. 

7. In this case however it is not necessary to rely on emerging policy because the office 

will be occupied by teams that directly support clinical services and it therefore needs to be 

adjacent to the hospital campus.  The NPPG confirms that such locational requirements can 

be taken into account, and the applicant is happy for the office use to be limited by condition 

to this type of occupation.  On this basis, and given the policy basis outlined above no 

further sequential test analysis is needed and an impact test is not required.  The proposed 

office use is therefore considered acceptable. 

8. At 118sq m, the retail use proposed is very small in scale, and serves primarily to 

animate this frontage to Campus Lane as a continuation of the frontage to MSCP1.  Officers 

have specifically sought the introduction of such uses here for design reasons.  Irrespective of 

the emerging site allocation PLY38, this route is likely to become a key pedestrian route from 

the Derriford Roundabout (and shops and services in its vicinity) to the hospital, and the 

need to reduce car dependence by promoting a walkable environment is paramount.  

Furthermore, a retail use of this scale adjacent to a hospital which employs in the region of 

6000 staff is unlikely to have any noticeable impact on other designated centres in the 

locality. 

Transport

9. The key transport considerations relate to traffic generation, vehicle routing, highway 

safety and the need for additional parking versus the promotion of sustainable alternative 

transport modes. 

10. A clear difference of opinion exists in respect of whether more or less car parking 

should be provided, even amongst the small number of contributors who responded to the 

consultation.  The Local Planning Authority recognises the need for car parking for both staff 

and visitors but has for many years been working with PHNT to encourage them to reduce 

the number of staff who arrive at the site by car through their staff travel plan.  The 



availability of car parking at the site is a critical and related determinant of staff travel choice.  

In simple terms an increase in staff parking is likely to lead to more staff arriving at the site 

by car. 

11. The emerging JLP recognises the need for a balanced approach that optimised 

sustainable travel in suitable locations such as this: alongside identifying this as a focus for 

growth in recognition of its accessibility by a variety of transport modes (S01, S04), SPT1 

promotes a sustainable society where sustainable, health promoting transport options are 

available to access local services and jobs; SPT9 promotes the provision of genuine 

alternative ways to travel from home to work and facilities, the provision of realistic 

sustainable transport choices, and the adoption of a hierarchy of transport modes. With 

reference to this hierarchy, SPT10 promotes a balanced programme of measures which will 

seek to encourage and facilitate greater modal shift towards sustainable modes of transport, 

and where infrastructure investment is needed, to support the improvement of sustainable 

transport choices for local people and businesses. 

12. In practical terms, this policy approach is demonstrated through recent and current 

transport projects in this area.  The Derriford Transport scheme, for example, improves the 

efficiency and therefore capacity of the highway whilst improving bus reliability and journey 

times.  The new public transport interchange outside the hospital also improves the 

attractiveness of bus use by reducing bus travel times to the site and improving the 

passenger environment.  The widening of Morlaix Drive identified as a future policy 

aspiration in the emerging JLP would further improve this by giving buses a faster, prioritised 

route into the site. 

13. The strategy adopted by the applicant for the current application, which is supported 

by transport and planning officers, is to deliver a multi-storey car park which enables a more 

efficient use of the site to deliver wider growth objectives whilst maintaining the status quo 

in parking terms.  This approach is also in-line with emerging policy DEV31 which asks that 

proposals limit/control the overall level of car parking provision at employment, retail and 

other destination locations.  For this reason the car park is designed to deliver broadly the 

same number of parking spaces as already exist elsewhere on the site.  A condition attached 

to the permission will ensure that the parking elsewhere on the site ceases when this car park 

opens. 

14. The Highway Authority has confirmed that they raise no objection to the proposal on 

traffic generation grounds if no less than 575 car parking spaces on the wider site are ceased.  

The applicant’s Transport Assessment (TA) argues that parking on the nearby Norwich Union 

site (where staff likely to occupy the future office are currently located) should be taken into 

account in this calculation.  Officers are unable to accept this position because that parking 

relates to that building, and will remain with that building once it is vacated by PHNT.  If the 

Norwich Union office were to be reoccupied once vacated, this would result in an increase in 

the number of cars parked in the area, and therefore an increase in vehicles on local roads 

contributing to congestion.  The applicant has always argued that the proposal will result in 

no net increase in parking numbers, and has therefore been unwilling to carry out an 

assessment additional trips and their impact on the highway network.  Approaching the 



development in this way dictates that they are also unwilling to contribute to improvements 

to surrounding roads to offset this increased use.  For these reasons officers cannot accept 

the inclusion of off-site parking in the ‘no net increase’ calculation.  Officers are therefore of 

the view that a similar number of staff car parking spaces on land within the applicant’s 

ownership must cease to allow for the 600 new staff spaces that are to be provided. 

15. Officers have reviewed historic aerial photographs of the site, and consider that the 

‘Car Park E’ area identified on the plan included in the initial TA submission accommodated 

around 565 parked cars.  Whilst the submitted information is unclear about whether these 

are all staff, with associated ambiguity over the location of the 95 contractor parking spaces, 

the parking controls on site suggest that these are mainly staff (permit and barrier 

controlled) with a separate contractor Pay and Display car park. The applicant is willing to 

cease the use of this area for parking, and in addition it will clearly no longer be possible to 

use the surface level parking area where the new car park will be built (this is not currently in 

use, but could be brought into use at any time as it has historically been used for parking 

purposes).   

16. Officers are of the view that the area of land (now marked as ‘Car Park E (west)’ on the 

submitted ‘Car Park Release Plan’) has historically accommodated more than 600 spaces, and 

therefore consider that the proposal will not result in a net increase in the number of cars 

parked across the wider site.  On this basis, and subject to a condition securing this as 

proposed, no objection is raised.  As the scheme will not increase the number of vehicles 

coming to the site, it is not necessary to consider the impacts on the surrounding highway 

network.  Any changes to vehicle routing must, however, be considered, and this is a concern 

raised by objectors.   

17. The principle concern is to avoid additional vehicles passing through the campus, and 

in particular there is a desire by both PHNT and officers to avoid additional vehicles on the 

section of Hospital Drive that separates MSCP1 and the copse of trees from the main hospital 

(adjacent to the disabled car park).  High volumes of traffic on this route would serve to sever 

the campus from the new development preventing proper integration and posing a safety 

concern to the high number of staff and visitors who need to cross this route. 

18. The site-wide masterplan demonstrates that a new access to the site to Derriford Road 

is proposed to its north west corner.  Discussions that took place during the appeal in 2012 

accepted an access in this position, albeit on a ‘left in’, ‘left out’ basis to prevent vehicles 

queuing to turn right into the site from Derriford Road impacting on the operation of the 

Derriford Roundabout (a right turn in was permitted for buses however).  Development of 

the wider NWQ site on this basis (ie once ‘Main St’ is delivered) would mean that vehicles 

would enter the hospital campus from Derriford Road but would be able to access the NWQ 

site via Main St such that they wouldn’t need to travel all the way down Hospital Drive to 

access the development via Roscoff. 

19. The applicant agrees to conditions requiring the construction of new routes to the 

new car park and securing a package of ‘access management’ measures (including for 

example signage) to promote the use of this route.  These measures will seek to ensure that 



vehicles entering the new car park will enter via Derriford Road and travel to the car park via 

the proposed ‘Main St’ rather than via Hospital Drive or Morlaix Drive (as set out on a 

submitted plan).  This route is the same as the route taken at present to car park E.  These 

measures seek to address concerns from PHNT and officers about an increased use of 

Hospital Drive (the road that divides NWQ from the main hospital). 

20. The conditions dictate that a further planning permission will be needed to enable the 

construction of this route before the car park can be used.  This is accepted by the applicant, 

and officers confirm that the necessary road infrastructure is included within the recently 

submitted application for the next phase of development (the Planned Care Centre). 

21. In light of the above, officers are satisfied that unacceptable increased use of Hospital 

Drive and Roscoff will be avoided, and on this basis no objection is raised to the access route 

to the car park.  It is also notable that the proposals indicate a new pedestrian crossing over 

hospital drive which will enable pedestrians to cross Hospital Drive from the north side of 

Roscoff.  This route will therefore be a more attractive route to the site from the bus 

interchange and will be aligned well with the hospital entrance in the event that changes to 

the PHNT disabled car park are made in future.  A condition (agreed by the applicant) is 

proposed to secure this crossing and the northern footway prior to the occupation of the 

development. 

22. The cycle parking proposed at lower ground floor level appears good quality, with two 

accesses from the footpaths in the ravine garden which link to Morlaix Drive and Roscoff. 

Although not overlooked it has the potential to be very secure and has immediate access to 

staff showers etc. The TA reports that 110 spaces are proposed.  Although the SPD standard 

of 1 space per 30sq m would require 156 spaces for the proposed office, transport officers 

consider 110 spaces to be sufficient.  A condition securing no less than 110 spaces is 

attached. 

23. Representations demonstrate that the 8 existing electric car charging points installed 

into MSCP1 (by a council-led project) are heavily used and that more capacity is needed.  The 

NPPF para 35 advises that Local Plans should include a requirement for electric car charging, 

and emerging JLP policy DEV31 requires development to provide for high quality, convenient 

facilities for zero emission vehicles (also acknowledged in paragraph 6.127).   

24. Transport officers also ask the hospital travel plan be updated, and given that new 

floorspace for PHNT is proposed this request is justified.  A pre-occupation condition is 

recommended. 

25. As further details relating to the transport aspects of the proposal have recently been 

received, an addendum report will be used to update members of the committee on the 

highway authority’s comments.  



Design

26. Pre-application discussion on the site-wide masterplan has been ongoing with the 

applicant in advance and in parallel to the submission of this application.  This includes a 

presentation to the design review panel.  The applicant describes their design approach as 

being ‘to give NWQ its own strong character; a set of buildings in an urban ‘campus’ setting, 

that directly addresses the streets, plazas and gardens, and giving clear orientation and 

aspect’. 

27. Although there remain some issues to work through, particularly in relation to 

vehicular access to potential retail/commercial plots closer to Derriford roundabout, there is 

broad agreement about the alignment of streets and particularly of Campus Lane / Roscoff.  

This route is designed to form part of the ‘Seaton Arc’, which policy PLY38 describes as a 

‘strong, legible pedestrian and cycling route from the hospital entrance and public transport 

interchange to the junction of Morlaix Drive with Brest Road’.  An important design 

consideration about this route is that it is activated at street level with shopfronts and 

entrances to public and/or intensively used buildings.  The current application conforms with 

that thinking and officers have no significant concerns about this part of the masterplan.  

28. The layout of the scheme responds well to the site character and supports the 

patterns of pedestrian and cycle movement promoted by the emerging JLP.  In orientating its 

main pedestrian accesses to Campus Lane / Roscoff, it encourages pedestrian movement 

along the ‘Seaton Arc’. The inclusion of a retail unit within the car park facing Campus Lane 

will also reinforce this.   

29. Alternative access points to the car park have been explored in order to limit the 

number of vehicles using this route, but in the absence of a scheme to widen Morlaix Drive 

there are no realistic alternatives.  Officers also agree that the impact of traffic on the quality 

of this street will be limited by the fact that the main traffic flows into and out of the car park 

will be early in the morning and in the evening, outside the hours when pedestrian use will 

be highest.  Vehicle routing is discussed in more detail in the transport section of this report. 

30. Although secondary in nature, pedestrian access from Morlaix Drive is also available 

via the linear garden space and/or the steps to the MSCP1 terrace and the bridge to the 

office.  Importantly this route permits a transition between Morlaix Drive and Campus Lane 

(via a high quality landscaped area). 

31. Both buildings are of similar height at around 27m high from Campus Lane (although 

the car park is 9/10 storeys compared to the 6-7 storeys of the office building).  This is 

around 12m (2.5 office storeys or around 4 levels of car parking) higher than the adjacent 

MSCP1 building.   

32. A detailed visual appraisal has been submitted in support of the application.  This 

concludes that i/ the topography of the surroundings limit the area from which the proposal 

can be seen; ii/ surrounding development and particularly the substantial vegetation that 

surrounds the site further screens the proposal; iii/ where visible it is generally viewed in the 



context of the dominant visual mass of the main hospital building and iv/ the site is not 

readily visible from the Bircham Valley so will have a negligible impact on the existing rural 

character of this area.  Officers raise no objection to the height proposed and consider that 

this supports the vision for the area in the emerging JLP to create an environment with a 

higher density more urban character. 

33. In detailed terms, the building design is considered high quality.  It is designed by the 

same architect as MSCP1 which officers recognise to be a good quality design.  The design 

approach of MSCP1, whereby materials are overlaid over a grid to form a mesh, is extended 

into these proposals, albeit that the buildings now proposed have a stronger vertical 

emphasis.  There is also relationship, and therefore a continuity, in the materials proposed, 

with the timber logs used on MSCP1 also being used on the proposed MSCP2.  Their use 

maximises natural ventilation, and as they are spaced more closely at the lower levels, they 

screen cars more effectively where they can be seen most clearly. 

34. The office is finished in a powder coated aluminium rainscreen cladding (some 

openable for ventilation purposes) with fixed vertical glazing panels.   

35. Overall the design quality of the scheme is considered high and subject to usual 

planning conditions to control materials, officers support the scheme in design terms.  In the 

absence of residential uses in close proximity, there are no amenity concerns. 

Trees and Ecology

36. The loss of trees has been the subject of objection from the Hospital Environment 

Group, who has raised concerns to the loss of a significant number of trees across the 

hospital site over the last year or so, most notably through the public transport interchange.  

Their concerns led to the implementation of a site-wide Tree Protection Order, which remains 

in place.  Officers agree that the loss is regrettable, particularly the two Category A trees to 

the north of the proposed building (one of which lies outside the application site but on land 

within the applicant’s control) and have therefore explored with the applicant at length 

whether or not these can be retained.  The justification relates to their position relative to 

Campus Lane (the Seaton Arc), but also to the relevelling of the site within the root 

protection areas that would be needed even if the necessary adjustments to the position of 

buildings could be achieved. 

37. The Tree Officer reluctantly accepts their justification and notes the compensatory 

planting proposed.  They request that the planting set out in the site-wide tree strategy is 

implemented.  Whilst officers intend to secure the planting of three trees outside the 

application site on the north side of Campus Lane (by condition), it would not be reasonable 

to insist on further planting beyond the application site before further assessment of the 

masterplan and future plots has been undertaken.  Furthermore, the submitted site-wide 

strategy involves further tree loss which has not yet been assessed or accepted and officers 

would prefer to consider the justification for any further losses on future plots only once 

more robust justification is available.  The intention to plant significant numbers of trees 



across the wider site is, however, noted and negotiations will continue with future 

applications to secure good quality new planting.   

38. In this case the compensation proposed (51 trees) is considered adequate (the 

package has been prepared to be inline with the draft standards being prepared for future 

updated SPD), and although there will clearly be a negative impact in the short term until 

new planting has established, this is accepted in this case given the otherwise acceptable 

nature of the proposals and the wider regeneration benefits the scheme facilitates.  

39. Crucially, the Plymouth Pear will also be safeguarded and adequate space will be 

made for its future growth.  Works to create the northern footway will also be conditioned to 

minimise any damaged to the lime trees within the copse area immediately to the north. 

40. A further condition secures that the trees are only removed in associated with the 

development proposed in order to avoid a situation where the trees are removed for the 

development does not proceed for some reason. 

Low Carbon

41. The Design and Access Statement reports that following a BREEAM pre-assessment 

the development is expected to be rated as ‘Excellent’.  It also reports that the buildings will 

exceed the 2013 Building Regulations standard for Carbon Dioxide emissions by 23%. 

42. However, considering the proposals in accordance with the methodology of adopted 

policy CS20, the solar PV mounted on the car park roof would achieve only 10.4% against the 

policy’s 15% CO2 reduction target. 

43. Whilst officers could insist on additional solar PV to achieve the 15%, the preference is 

that the scheme helps to deliver a District Heating System in this area.  This approach 

recognises that there is significant scope for a future network given that a large number of 

buildings with a significant heat load are located in an area where there is also a heat source.  

Discussions about the potential for future phases to help implement this network are 

ongoing in related pre-application enquiries.  In light of this opportunity, officers’ 

recommendation is that consent is granted subject to a financial S106 obligation of £40,000 

to help deliver the District Heat network.  This figure is equivalent to the cost of achieving the 

further 4.6% CO2 reduction needed to achieve the 15% policy compliance through off-site 

solar PV installations. 

44. The applicant has agreed to this approach subject to a clause which would allow for 

them to help establish the network in other ways.  This might include, for example, providing 

routes through the site for District Heat pipework, or space for necessary plant.  Officers are 

happy to consider such proposals, and in the event that no agreement is reached, the 

£40,000 will be payable. 



45. In either case, the office scheme will need to demonstrate that its heating strategy is 

compatible with future heat networks such that it can be readily connected to any future 

district heating system at an appropriate time. 

9. Human Rights

Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the 

Human Rights Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act 

itself. This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on 

Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the 

applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been balanced and 

weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed through third party interests / 

the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

10. Local Finance Considerations

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, although not exempt from 

liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), will not 

attract a levy payment under our current charging schedule.  The uses proposed are rated at 

£0/sq m for CIL purposes under the adopted CIL charaging schedule, so no CIL is payable. 

11. Planning Obligations

The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 

development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 

acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for 

granting planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL 

Regulations 2010 are met. 

Planning obligations in this case are required only to mitigate against the Carbon Dioxide 

emissions of the building in lieu of the full 15% requirement of CS20 being met through on-

site solar PV.  The contribution of £40,000 (discussed in more detail in the Low Carbon 

section of this report above) will be secured through a S106, and will include a clause which 

allows for the applicant to contribute to the establishment of a District Heat network in other 

ways to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  The following Heads of Terms are 

recommended: 

• Payment of £40,000 on first occupation of the office building towards the 

establishment of a District Heat Network in the vicinity of the application site, unless an 

alternative package of measures to assist in the establishment of such a networks to the 

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority have first been agreed in writing. 

12. Equalities and Diversities

The car park includes 18 accessible car parking spaces, 16 of which are immediately 

accessible to the podium level.  All levels of the office are accessible by lift, and despite the 



significant level changes the footpath through the site is designed as a ‘universally accessible 

walking route’.   

13. Conclusions

Officers conclude that the proposal is in line with emerging thinking set out in the JLP for the 

development of this area both within the area vision and the emerging site allocation for the 

Derriford Commercial Centre PLY38.  It is also in broad alignment with the majority of 

emerging JLP policies.  The proposals will free up the remainder of this strategic site for 

development by bringing together existing surface level car parking into a large multi-storey 

car park.  Vehicle routing to the site will be similar to that existing, so no off-site measures 

are required.  The tree loss is unfortunate and regretted, but officers ultimately conclude that 

this is necessary and subject to the compensatory planting proposed, is acceptable. 

The proposal comprises phase 1 of a significant regeneration scheme that is in-line with 

emerging policy aspirations and meets the requirements of adopted planning policy.  

Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national 

guidance.  The scheme is therefore recommended for conditional approval subject to a S106. 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 31.01.2017 

it is recommended to Grant Conditionally Subject to S106 

15. Conditions / Reasons 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans:  

1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

Other CAR PARK E (WEST) Version:  received 14/06/17 

Tree Protection Plan 04676 MSCP2 TPP Version: A received 16/05/17 

Facade Details APRIL 2017 Version:  received 14/04/17 

Demolition Works  Version:  received 22/12/17 

Site Location Plan 1307-010-001 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Site plan 1307-11-001 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Lower Ground Floor Plan 1307-11-002 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Ground Floor Plan 1307-11-003 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

1st Floor Plan 1307-11-004 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Proposed Floor Plans 1307-11-005 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

5th Floor Plan 1307-11-006 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 



Roof Plan 1307-11-007 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Proposed Elevations 1307-12-001 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

East Elevation 1307-12-002 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

West Elevation 1307-12-003 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Proposed Sections 1307-13-001 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Proposed Sections 1307-13-002 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Facade Details 1307-14-001 Version: 0 received 22/12/16 

Planting Plan TS050-1-GA-02 Version: 00 received 22/12/16 

Hardworks Plan TS050-1-GA-01 Version: 02 received 15/06/17 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy 

CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 

paragraphs 61-66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

beginning from the date of this permission. 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning  & Compulsory Purchase  Act 2004. 

 3 CONDITION: CONTAMINATED LAND

PRE-COMMENCEMENT 

Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that 

required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall not take place 

until sections 1 to 3 of this condition have been complied with. If unexpected contamination 

is found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site 

affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning 

Authority in writing until section 4 of this condition has been complied with in relation to 

that contamination. 

Section 1. Site Characterisation 



An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the 

planning application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature 

and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The 

contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a 

written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval 

in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include: 

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 

(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

o human health 

o property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and 

service lines and pipes 

o adjoining land 

o groundwaters and surface waters 

o ecological systems 

o archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model 

Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 

Section 2. Submission of Remediation Scheme 

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use 

by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the 

natural and historical environment shall be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing 

of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, 

proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site 

management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 

contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the 

intended use of the land after remediation. 

Section 3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 

The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to 

the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, 

unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning 

Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the 

remediation scheme works. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a 

verification report (referred to in the replaced PPS23 as a validation report) that 



demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is 

subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

Section 4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 

development that was not previously identified it shall be reported in writing immediately to 

the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 

accordance with the requirements of section 1 of this condition, and where remediation is 

necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of 

section 2, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a 

verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 

Planning Authority in accordance with section 3. 

Reason: 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 

unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with 

policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, 

and paragraphs 120 - 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

Justification: To ensure that any relevant health risks associated with contaminated land can 

be resolved during groundworks. 

 4 CONDITION: ARBORICULTURAL METHOD STATEMENT 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT  

No development shall take place until an Arboricultural Method Statement has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in relation to the 

Plymouth Pear (ref:334) and the three Limes (ref:337 A, B and C shown on the submitted tree 

protection plan). The statement shall detail how trees are to be protected during 

construction. It shall include measures for protection in the form of barriers to provide a 

'construction exclusion zone' and ground protection in accordance with Section 6.1 of BS: 

5837:2012 Trees in relation to Design, Demolition and Construction - Recommendations.  

The measures contained in the approved statement shall be fully implemented prior to the 

commencement of the relevant parts of the work, and shall remain in place until construction 

work has ceased. 



Reason: 

To ensure that the trees on site are protected during construction work in accordance with 

Policy CS18 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, 

and paragraphs 61,109 and 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and Joint 

Local Plan Policy DEV30. 

Justification: To ensure the trees are protected throughout the scheme. 

 5 CONDITION: ACCESS (CONTRACTORS)

PRE-COMMENCEMENT 

Before any other works are commenced, an adequate road access for contractors with a 

proper standard of visibility shall be formed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 

Authority and connected to the adjacent highway in a position and a manner to be agreed 

with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: 

To ensure an adequate road access at an early stage in the development in the interests of 

public safety, convenience and amenity in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the 

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 32 

of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

Justification: To ensure an adequate road access at an early stage in the development in the 

interests of public safety. 

 6 CONDITION: CODE OF PRACTICE

PRE-COMMENCEMENT 

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed Construction 

Environmental Management Plan for the construction phase of the development shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include 

details of timings of works, access routes, locations of site compounds and contractor 

parking, storage, lighting and measures to reduce water, air and noise pollution. The 

development shall be constructed in accordance with the management plan.  



Reason: 

To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting 

effects during construction works and avoid conflict with Policy CS22  of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 120 -123 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

Justification: To ensure that the construction phase does not unduly impact on local amenity 

such as disturbance to other site users or disruption to traffic and parking. 

 7 CONDITION: SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE

PRE-COMMENCEMENT 

Further details of the following aspects of the surface water drainage system for the 

development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing prior to the 

commencement of development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority: 

a/ Confirmed details regarding the size, type, line and level of the existing surface water 

drainage system into which the development is to connect. This should extend from the 

point of connection to the downstream discharge point in the watercourse and should be 

confirmed on a drainage plan and associated longitudinal cross section through the drainage 

system. 

b/ A surface water exceedance flow plan, clearly identifying exceedance routes (especially 

those from the surcharged sewer) which take account of the requirements of any relevant 

landowners.  

c/ Evidence of the agreement of all landowners impacted by exceedance flows to the surface 

water exceedance flow plan. 

d/ Confirmation of the drainage infrastructure adoption and maintenance proposals. 

e/ Relevant extracts of a Construction Environment Management plan setting out how the 

surface water drainage system and wider water environment will be constructed during the 

construction (and any demolition) phase. 

Construction stage details required by part e/ of this condition shall be implemented in 

accordance with that approval prior to the commencement of development.  The surface 

water drainage strategy for the completed development shall be implemented in accordance 

with approved details  prior to the first use of any part of the development. 



Reason: 

To prevent the increased risk of flooding and minimise the risk of pollution of surface water 

by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of surface water control and disposal 

during and after development in accordance with the requirements of Policy CS21 of the 

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) Adopted 2007. 

Justification: To ensure the drainage provisions within the development are adequately 

provided for (including construction stage provisions) before development commences and 

does not cause undue problems to the wider drainage infrastructure 

 8 CONDITION: DETAILS OF CAR PARK ACCESS

PRE-COMMENCEMENT 

No development shall take place unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority until full details of the proposed vehicular access to the multi-storey car park, 

including details of the access ramp gradient, ticket barriers and visibility, have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  No use of the car 

park shall take place until the access has been constructed in accordance with the approved 

details. 

Reason: 

To ensure that an appropriate and safe access is provided in the interests of public safety, 

convenience and amenity in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 32 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

Justification: To ensure that the design of the car park, including its level relative to the street, 

is acceptable in safety terms prior to the commencement of construction. 

 9 CONDITION: STREET DETAILS

PRE-COMMENCEMENT 

No development shall take place unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority until details of the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials and method of 

construction and drainage of all roads and footways forming part of the development have 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All roads and 



footways that form part of the development shall be constructed in accordance with the 

approved details. 

The northern footway to Roscoff, together with the pedestrian crossings of Hospital Drive 

and Campus Lane shown on approved drawing TS050-1-GA-01 Rev 02 shall be provided in 

accordance with further details to be approved prior to the occupation of the development 

hereby approved unless an alternative timetable is first agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

Reason: 

To provide a road and footpath pattern that secures a safe and convenient environment and 

to a satisfactory standard in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 32 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

10 CONDITION: DISTRICT HEAT CONNECTIVITY

PRE-COMMENCEMENT / PRE-OCCUPATION 

A report identifying how the development has been designed to be compatible with and 

allow future connection to a local district heating network (in line with current best practice) 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 

commencement of the construction of the office hereby approved unless otherwise agreed 

in advance in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall thereafter be 

constructed in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: 

In accordance with the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 

2007) and the draft Joint Local Plan Policy DEV34 and relevant Central Government guidance 

contained within the NPPF. 

Justification: To ensure that the office building has been designed to be compatible with 

district heating prior to construction. 



11 CONDITION: TREE REMOVAL ONLY WITH DEVELOPMENT

PRE-COMMENCEMENT  

The removal of trees (protected by TPO410) hereby authorised shall be carried out only in 

accordance with the implementation of the permission hereby approved.  Prior to the 

removal of the trees, evidence of a contract for the construction of the development hereby 

approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  In 

the event that the development does not proceed within two years of the felling of the first 

tree, details of a package of compensatory planting shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority and planted in accordance with that approval within 

one year of the date of that approval (all unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority). 

Reason:  

In order to avoid unnecessary felling of trees in accordance with policies CS18 and CS34 of 

the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 1997). 

Justification: Evidence of the imminent commencement of the main development is 

requested to avoid the unnecessary removal of trees. 

12 CONDITION: FURTHER DETAILS

PRIOR TO RELEVANT PART OF THE WORKS 

The relevant part of the works hereby approved shall not take place until details of the 

following aspects of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority: 

a/ Detailed horizontal sections through typical facade treatments, including shopfronts or 

entrances as relevant 

b/ Detailed vertical sections  through typical facade treatments, including shopfronts or 

entrances as relevant 

The works shall be completed  in accordance with the approved details. 



Reason: 

To ensure that these further details are acceptable to the Local Planning Authority and that 

they are in keeping with the standards of the vicinity in accordance with Policy CS34 of the 

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 

61-66, 109, 110 and 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 . 

13 CONDITION: EXTERNAL MATERIALS

PRIOR TO THE RELEVANT PART OF THE WORKS 

The relevant part of the development hereby approved shall not commence until samples of 

the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the buildings have 

been submitted (or a sample panel erected and inspected on site) for approval and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved details. 

Reason: 

To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the character of the area in accordance 

with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 

2007, and paragraphs 61 to 66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

14 CONDITION: HARD LANDSCAPING MATERIALS

PRIOR TO THE RELEVANT PART OF THE WORKS 

The relevant part of the development hereby approved shall not commence until details of 

the materials to be used in the construction of the hard landscaping works (including street 

furniture and the Plymouth Pear interpretation panel) have been approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.  Submitted details may include detailed drawings, manufacturer's 

specifications or samples (including sample panels erected and inspected on site) as relevant.  

Development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to 

the first occupation of the building unless an alternative timetable is submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: 

To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the character of the area in accordance 

with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 

2007, and paragraphs 61 to 66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 



15 CONDITION: LOCATION AND OPERATION OF PLANT

GENERAL / PRIOR TO COOKING EXTRACT 

Plant and Equipment required for the operation of the buildings hereby approved shall be 

installed only in the areas identified for plant purposes on the approved drawings unless 

otherwise agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority.  Noise (LAeqT) from 

the operation of any plant and machinery on the commercial premises hereby approved shall 

not exceed the background noise level (LA90) by more than 5dB, including the 

character/tonalities of the noise, at any time as measured at the façade of the nearest unit. 

In the event that mechanical extract equipment is required in association with cooking on the 

premises, this shall not be installed unless details of the equipment are first submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall include position on the 

building, visual appearance, details of hours of operation of the equipment, details of noise 

levels, odour control measures, and the manufacturer's instructions along with a description 

of any cooking equipment proposed. 

Reason: 

To protect the visual and general amenity of the area from unsightly additions to the 

building and/or potential odour emanating from cooking activity in accordance with the 

requirements of policies CS22 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework 

Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

16 CONDITION: NEW ACCESS ROUTE TO CAR PARK (GRAMPIAN)

PRE-OCCUPATION 

Use of the car park hereby permitted for vehicle parking purposes shall not commence until 

a new vehicle access route to the car park which does not rely on the use of the street 

Roscoff (to the north of the existing multi storey car park as shown on submitted plan 

number 130711003) has been constructed in accordance with details to be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance.  The primary access shall be 

in accordance with the details set out of drawing 1529/300 (Primary Access Route to MSCP2) 

submitted as part of Alan Baxter Associates Document Response to Plymouth City Council 

transport comments (dated 12 May 2017 ref 1529/300) unless alternative routing is agreed in 

writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority. 



Reason: 

In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with Policy CS28 of the 

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 32 

of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

17 CONDITION: CAR PARKING TO CEASE

PRE-OCCUPATION 

No use of the car park element of the development hereby approved for vehicle parking 

purposes shall take place until all car (or other vehicle) parking in the area marked Car Park E 

(West) (575 staff spaces) on the annotated aerial photograph submitted 14 June 2017 (filed 

as Car Park Release Plan) has ceased.  Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-

enacting that Order with or without modification), no vehicle parking (except that hereby 

approved) shall take place on the land marked Car Park E (West) (575 staff spaces) on the 

annotated aerial photograph submitted 14 June 2017 (filed as Car Park Release Plan) unless 

expressly approved through the granting of planning permission after the date of this 

permission.  

Reason: 

In order to ensure that the development does not lead to an unacceptable increase in vehicle 

trips on the highway network, and contributes to the promotion of sustainable travel 

alternatives in accordance with policy CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework 

Core Strategy (Adopted 1997) 

18 CONDITION: CAR PARK ACCESS MEASURES

PRE-OCCUPATION 

Use of the car park hereby permitted for vehicle parking purposes shall not commence 

unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority until a package of 

measures to direct vehicles into the car park via the route shown on plan 1529/300 Primary 

Access Route to MSCP2 (submitted as part of Alan Baxter Associates Document Response to 

Plymouth City Council transport comments - dated 12 May 2017 ref 1529/300) have been 

implemented in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority in advance.  Any measures requiring ongoing management and 

implementation shall thereafter be continued unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 



Reason: 

To prevent increased use of the roads known as Hospital Drive and Roscoff in the interests of 

creating a high quality public realm and ensuring pedestrian safety on the hospital site in 

accordance with Policy CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy 

(2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, and 

policies PLY38 and DEV31 of the draft Joint Local Plan. 

19 CONDITION: ELECTRIC CAR CHARGING

PRE-OCCUPATION OF CAR PARK 

Use of the car park hereby approved for vehicle parking purposes shall not commence until 

electric car charging facilities have been provided in accordance with details to be submitted 

to and approved in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority.   The details shall 

include the provision of: 

- Fully installed and functional electric car charging points for the simultaneous 

charging of no less than 30 vehicles 

- Ducting and power supply for the future installation of charging points to enable the 

the simultaneous charging of no less than an additional 30 vehicles 

The above provision shall include electric charging to a proportion of the accessible car 

parking spaces unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: 

In the interests of reducing carbon dioxide emissions and encouraging sustainable travel in 

accordance with policy CS20 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy 

(adopted 2007), policy DEV31 of the draft Joint Local Plan, and National Planning Policy 

Framework paragraph 35. 

20 CONDITION: FURTHER CYCLE PARKING DETAILS

PRE-OCCUPATION 

Further details of the proposed cycle parking provision, to include details of stands and 

security measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  The details thereby approved shall be provided in accordance with that approval 

prior to the occupation of the office use hereby approved.  No less than 110 cycle parking 



spaces shall be provided.  In the event that it is not possible to adequately accommodate 110 

cycles in the store shown on the approved plans, details of additional cycle parking facilities 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning and provided in 

accordance with that approval prior to the occupation of the office use hereby approved 

(unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority). 

Reason: 

In order to deliver adequate cycle parking for the development in accordance with policy 

CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (adopted 2007), and 

policy DEV31 of the draft Joint Local Plan and the Development Guidelines SPD (First Review 

adopted 2013). 

21 CONDITION: CAR PARKING MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

PRE-OCCUPATION 

Prior to the first use of the multi-storey car park for car parking purposes a Car Parking 

Management Strategy for the car park shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 

Planning Authority. The strategy shall include specific measures relating to the use and 

control of the proposed multi-storey car park (enforcement, charging, hours of operation 

etc).  The car park shall thereafter be managed in accordance with the approved 

management plan unless a variation is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  

Reason: 

To ensure that the use of the car parking spaces is properly controlled in order to support 

the aims and objectives of the Derriford Hospital Travel Plan in securing a greater level of 

modal shift towards the use of sustainable modes of transport and hence reduce the number 

of single car journeys being made on the highway network to comply with policy CS28 of the 

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 2007) and policy DEV31 of 

the emerging JLP. 

22 CONDITION: TRAVEL PLAN

PRE-OCCUPATION 

The office hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a Travel Plan has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The said Travel Plan shall seek to 

encourage staff and all site users  to use modes of transport other than the private car to get 



to and from the premises. It shall also include measures to control the use of the permitted 

car parking areas; arrangements for monitoring the use of provisions available through the 

operation of the Travel Plan; and the name, position and contact telephone number of the 

person responsible for its implementation. From the date of first occupation of the office the 

occupier shall operate the approved Travel Plan.  The Travel Plan may take the form of an 

updated hospital-wide Travel Plan if required. 

Reason: 

The Local Planning Authority considers that such measures need to be taken in order to 

reduce reliance on the use of private cars (particularly single occupancy journeys) and to 

assist in the promotion of more sustainable travel choices in accordance with Policy CS28 of 

the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, policy DEV31 

of the draft Joint Local Plan, and paragraphs 32 and 34 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework 2012.  The applicant should contact Plymouth Transport and Infrastructure for 

site-specific advice prior to preparing the Travel Plan. 

23 CONDITION: PEDESTRIAN/CYCLE ACCESS

PRE-OCCUPATION 

The buildings shall not be occupied until a means of access for pedestrians and cyclists has 

been constructed in accordance with the approved plans. 

Reason: 

To ensure that an appropriate and safe access is provided in the interests of public safety, 

convenience and amenity in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 32 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

24 CONDITION: SOLAR ARRAY

PRE-OCCUPATION 

The office hereby approved shall not be occupied until a solar PV array with an output of no 

less than 89.11 kWp has been installed and made fully operational as part of the 

development hereby approved. 



Reason: 

To reduce Carbon Dioxide emissions from the development as required by policy CS20 of the 

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (adopted 2007), the draft Joint Local 

Plan Policy DEV34 and relevant Central Government guidance contained within the NPPF. 

25 CONDITION: SOFT LANDSCAPING WORKS

PRE-OCCUPATION 

Further details of the proposed planting works shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority.  Details shall be in accordance with approved plans TS050-1-

GA-02 (Planting Works General Arrangement) and TS050-1-GA-03 (Living Roof General 

Arrangement), and shall include the tree planting to the north of Campus Lane shown on 

approved plan TS050-1-GA-01 Rev 02 (Hardworks General Arrangement).  Details shall 

include the location of all proposed plants their species, numbers, densities, type (i.e bare 

root/container grown or root balled, girth size and height (in accordance with the HTA 

National Plant specification), planting specification including topsoil depths, soiling 

operations, cultivation, soil amelorants and all works of ground preparation, tree pit details 

(including a minimum of 15 cu m of supportive roof infrastructure), and plant specification 

including handling, planting, seeding, turfing, mulching and plant protection.   

Works shall be implemented in accordance with approved details prior to the first occupation 

of the development hereby approved unless an alternative timetable is agreed in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason:  

To ensure that satisfactory landscaping works are carried out in accordance with Policies 

CS18 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 

2007. 

26 CONDITION: BIODIVERSITY

PRE-OCCUPATION 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing in advance with the Local Planning Authority, the 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation and enhancement 

measures outlined in the submitted Ecological Appraisal (dated December 2016) prior to first 

occupation. 



Reason: 

In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of 

biological interest, in accordance with Core Strategy policies CS01, CS19, CS34 and 

Government advice contained in the NPPF paragraphs 109, 118. 

27 CONDITION: LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT PLAN

PRE-OCCUPATION 

A Landscape Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the development. The Plan shall include the 

long term objectives of the landscape scheme, and must set out how these objectives will be 

met. The Management Plan must indicate the ownerships and responsibilities of all 

landowners. The Landscape Management Plan should also set out all maintenance 

operations for the intial 5 years following completion.  Landscaping shall thereafter be 

managed in accordance with the approved details.   

Any tree or planting which is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes, in the 

opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or defective within a period of 

five years from the date of the planting (or any replacement already planted for the same), 

replacement planting of the same species and size shall be planted in the same location 

unless alternative details are first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: 

To ensure that due regard is paid to the continued enhancement and maintenance of 

amenity is afforded by the changed landscape in accordance with Policies CS18 and CS34 of 

the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007 and 

paragraphs 61, 109 and 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

28 CONDITION: EXTERNAL ARTIFICIAL LIGHTING

PRE-OCCUPATION 

Details of any external lighting proposed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority, and provided in accordance with that approval, before the use 

hereby permitted begins.  



Reason: 

To ensure that a safe and secure environment is provided and the details of the development 

are acceptable and in keeping with the standards of the vicinity in accordance with Policies 

CS22, CS32 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy 

(Adopted 2007). 

29 CONDITION: OFFICE OCCUPATION

GENERAL 

The office hereby approved shall be occupied only by Plymouth Hospital NHS Trust or by 

related organisations whose main business relies on close proximity to Derriford Hospital. 

Reason: 

In accordance with the application and in the absence of a sequential test required by policy 

24 of the National Planning Policy Framework to demonstrate that there are no sequentially 

preferable sites for this 'main town centre' office use. 

30 CONDITION: STAFF PARKING ONLY

GENERAL 

The car park hereby approved shall be used for the parking of vehicles by staff of Plymouth 

Hospital NHS Trust only. 

Reason: 

In accordance with the application in the interests of managing hospital-related vehicle 

movements in accordance with policy CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework 

Core Strategy (adopted 2007), and policy DEV31 of the draft Joint Local Plan. 

31 CONDITION: MAXIMUM CAR PARKING PROVISION

PRE-OCCUPATION 

The car park hereby approved shall contain no more than 600 car parking spaces. 



Reason: 

In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the level of car parking provision must be 

limited in order to prevent additional congestion on the surrounding highway network and 

assist the promotion of sustainable travel choices in accordance with Policy CS28 of the 

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, policy DEV31 of 

the draft Joint Local Plan and paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

Informatives

 1 INFORMATIVE: (£0 CIL LIABILITY) DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT ATTRACT A 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, although not exempt from 

liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), will not 

attract a levy payment, due to its size or nature, under our current charging schedule.  The 

Levy is subject to change and you should check the current rates at the time planning 

permission first permits development (if applicable) see www.plymouth.gov.uk/cil for 

guidance. 

 2 INFORMATIVE: S106 PERMISSION

This permission is subject to a planning obligation - please refer to Section 106 agreement 

for details. 

 3 INFORMATIVE: FURTHER PLANNING PERMISSION NEEDED BEFORE THIS CAR 

PARK CAN BE OCCUPIED)

Please note that a further planning permission is needed to satisfy condition 16 attached to 

this consent (construction of a car park access road).  The car park cannot be lawfully used 

until permission has been granted and access road constructed.  If the access route is to 

differ from that set out in the plan referred to in condition 16, a condition discharge 

application for condition 16 will be required. 

 4 INFORMATIVE: COLLABORATION ON ACCESS MANAGEMENT MEASURES

It is expected that access management measures required by a condition attached to this 

consent will need to be prepared in collaboration with PHNT. 



 5 INFORMATIVE: PUBLIC PROTECTION SERVICE ADVICE

The Public protection service advise that any establishment where the public are invited to sit 

and eat must provide toilet accommodation. 

 6 INFORMATIVE: NO FOUL CONNECTION

South West Water advise that foul drainage from the Development (and no other drainage) 

shall be connected to the public foul or combined sewer. 

 7 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL NEGO

In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 

(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 

of the National Planning Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-

active way with the Applicant including pre-application discussions and has negotiated 

amendments to the application to enable the grant of planning permission. 



Planning Applications Determined Since Last Committee

Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 16/02117/FUL Mrs Vivienne Elliott Erection of single dwelling 5 Southwell Road Plymouth PL6 

5BE

Miss Amy Thompson

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00781/FUL Mr John Yiannacou Rear extension, loft conversion with rear 

dormer and change of use from 6-bed HMO 

(Class C4) to 8-bed HMO (Sui Generis)

4 Restormel Terrace  Restormel 

Road Plymouth PL4 6BJ

Mr Chris Cummings

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00786/S73 Mr Frame Variation of condition 2 (plans) of application 

15/00716/FUL to provide front and rear 

dormers.

4A Billacombe Villas Plymouth PL9 

8AL

Miss Amy Thompson

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00834/TCO Mr Ben Wilcox Apple tree  - remove 8 Boringdon Terrace Plymouth PL9 

9TQ

Mrs Jane Turner

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00841/TPO Mr James Croucher Holly (T2) - Crown reduction by up to half.  

Sycamore (T12) - Crown raise to 3m above 

ground level.  Sycamore (T13) - Crown raise 

to 3m above ground level.  Prunus (T14) - 

Crown raise to 3m above ground level. 

Prunus (T15) - Crown raise to 3m above 

ground level. Apple (T16) - Crown thin. 

Prunus (G1) - Crown raise all trees to 3m 

above ground level & removal  branches 

overhanging driveway.

3 Sherford Road Plymouth PL9 8DQ Mrs Jane Turner

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00850/TPO Mr lane T1 Sycamore - Remove 4 limbs overhanging 

garden back to boundary line.

8 Frensham Avenue Plymouth PL6 

7JN

Mrs Jane Turner

16 June 2017 Page 1 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00876/TPO Mr Ian Gill 3 Eucalyptus  - cut back branches by 3-4m to 

natural growth points to clear street lamp 

and footpath/ramp.

The Moneycentre 1 Drake Circus 

Plymouth PL1 1QH 

Mrs Jane Turner

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00883/TPO Mr John White Various tree works including the 

coppicing/removal of Sycamores, Hazel and 

reduction of other trees as detailed in 

Document 3 dated 10.4.17.

80 Grantham Close Plymouth PL7 

1UN 

Mrs Jane Turner

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00884/TPO Pam Hearn 2 x Horse Chestnuts - Reduce crown by 3m to 

previous pruning points

9 Reservoir Road Plymstock 

Plymouth PL9 8JR 

Mrs Jane Turner

26/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00896/TPO Mr Alister Morley Box Elder - relocate to position shown on 

plan submitted with the application at front 

of property.

76A Radford Park Road Plymouth 

PL9 9DX 

Mrs Jane Turner

31/05/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

17/01065/CDM Drake Circue Leisure 

Ltd

Condition Discharge: Partial discharge of 

conditions 4, 5 & 7 of application 

15/01163/FUL

Bretonside Bus Station  Bretonside 

Plymouth PL4 0BG

Mr John Douglass

31/05/2017 Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/00957/AMD Mr Graham Coates Amendment to application 16/01040/FUL to 

include a rear Juliet balcony

40 Barn Field Drive Plymouth PL7 

2GJ 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00522/FUL Mr Gary Weeks Rear extension (retrospective) 12 Richmond Road Plymouth PL6 

5EE 

Mr Chris Cummings

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00745/FUL Mr D An Partial rear tenement demolition to create 

2no. parking spaces and associated listed 

building works

77 Embankment Road Plymouth 

PL4 9HX 

Mrs Jess Maslen

16 June 2017 Page 2 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00783/FUL Mr J Wall Amend previously approved dwelling 

(14/01466/FUL) to increase the width and 

height of the new dwelling, and to include a 

room in the roofspace

166 Victoria Road Plymouth PL5 

1QY 

Miss Amy Thompson

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00794/LBC Mr John Pritchard Re-configuration of layout of flat together 

with raised decking area to roof terrace and 

fitting of privacy screen to neighbouring 

property

Flat 10, 35 - 37 Grand Parade 

Plymouth PL1 3DQ 

Mrs Kate Price

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00813/FUL Mr Andrew Shute Front extension to form porch 9 Hirmandale Road Plymouth PL5 

2JZ

Mrs Liz Wells

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00816/FUL Drake Circus Limited 

Partnership

Change of use of the mezzanine of retail unit 

SU19 from A1 to restaurant/ cafe (A3) use.

Drake Circus Shopping Mall 1 

Charles Street Plymouth PL1 1EA 

Mrs Olivia Wilson

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00822/ADV Co Op Food Illuminated and non-illuminated signage 34 - 42 Embankment Road 

Plymouth PL4 9HY 

Mrs Jess Maslen

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00830/FUL Mr Joel Allen Change of use from car repairs (B1/B2 and 

B8)  to car and van hire (Sui Generis)

2 Barbican Approach Plymouth 

PL4 0LG

Mr Chris Cummings

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00832/FUL Mr Joel Allen Change of use from limousine hire/storage 

and plant hire (Class B1/B2 and B8) to car 

and van hire (Sui Generis)

30 Commercial Road Plymouth PL4 

0LE

Mr Chris Cummings

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00846/ADV Katheryn Mear Various signage Derrys Department Store 88 Royal 

Parade Plymouth PL1 1HA 

Mrs Jess Maslen

16 June 2017 Page 3 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00852/FUL Mr Stuart Robertson Side and rear extension 31 Whiteford Road Plymouth PL3 

5LU 

Mr Mike Stone

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00886/FUL Mr Stephen Cornish Rear and side extension including loft 

conversion

79 Lower Compton Road Plymouth 

PL3 5DW 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00891/FUL Mr Bernard Leech Rear extension 1 Deeble Close Plymouth PL7 4BR Mr Mike Stone

31/05/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00904/FUL Piety Change of use of ground floor of HMO (Sui 

Generis) to D1 (Non-residential 

Institutions)/D2 (Assembly and Leisure) 

resubmission of 17/00578/FUL.

43 Beaumont Road Plymouth PL4 

9BJ 

Mr Mike Stone

31/05/2017 Prior Approval Not 

Required

17/00979/GP1 Mr Ian Milner A single-storey rear extension which extends 

beyond the rear wall of the original 

dwellinghouse by 4.0m, has a maximum 

height of 3.968m, and has an eaves height of 

2.707m

34 North Down Crescent Plymouth 

PL2 2AR 

Mr Mike Stone

01/06/2017 Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/00936/AMD Mr Nick Haigh Non-material minor-amendment for 

application 16/01779/REM: Changes to some 

of the building materials used

Old Mays Nursery, Vinery Lane 

Elburton Plymouth PL9 8DE

Mr Alan Hartridge

01/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00490/FUL Mr Nic Taylor Two storey rear extension 10 Admiralty Road St Budeaux 

Plymouth PL5 1NJ

Mr Mike Stone

01/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00838/LBC Mr Jez McDermott Removal of modern internal partition to 

create larger office space

Saltram House Saltram  Merafield 

Road Plymouth PL7 1UH

Mrs Kate Price

16 June 2017 Page 4 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

01/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00853/ADV Mr Graham Stockman Temporary sign indicating route to hotel 

business following closure of main access 

route (William Prance Road)

1 William Prance Road Plymouth 

PL6 5ZD 

Mrs Jess Maslen

01/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00879/FUL Mr George Bow Loft conversion 309A Old Laira Road Plymouth PL3 

6DH

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

01/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00911/FUL Mr Martin Soper Front porch 12 Agaton Road Plymouth PL5 

2EW 

Mr Chris Cummings

01/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00917/FUL Mr Simon Peters Side and rear extensions 25 Bromhead Court Plymouth PL6 

5NJ

Mr Chris Cummings

01/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00967/FUL Mr D Reddaway Rear extension. 17 Gower Ridge Road Plymouth 

PL9 9DR

Mr Mike Stone

01/06/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/00819/PRDE Mr & Mrs Barry Jones Rear extension (demolition of existing 

conservatory)

114 Leatfield Drive Plymouth PL6 

5EZ

Mr Chris Cummings

01/06/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/00994/PRDE Mr John Sheerin Rear dormer and roof alterations 19 Efford Crescent Plymouth PL3 

6NH 

Mr Chris Cummings

01/06/2017 Refused 17/00286/FUL Mr Nigel Larcombe-

Williams

Conversion of basement into 2 self-contained 

flats (Class C3)

6 Connaught Avenue Plymouth 

PL4 7BX 

Mr Mike Stone

16 June 2017 Page 5 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

01/06/2017 Split Decision 17/00818/ADV Mrs Caroline Cozens Stand mounted signs on various 

roundabouts, reservations and garden sites

Various 

Roundabout/Reservation/Garden 

Sites Plymouth

Miss Amy Thompson

02/06/2017 Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/01125/AMD Mr Andrew Pascoe 

And Mrs Tracey Lee

Non material minor amendment: 

amendment to decking for application 

15/00040/FUL

27 Whiteford Road Plymouth PL3 

5LU 

Mr Mike Stone

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00683/FUL Mrs Barbara Willis Replacement of full height sash windows 

with a french door.

Flat 2 Chaddlewood House 

Clement Road Plymouth PL7 2HH 

Mrs Kate Price

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00766/FUL Mr David Hendy Addition of 4 studios to previously consented 

scheme 03/01649/FUL and minor external 

alterations

5-7 Gibbon Lane Plymouth PL4 8BS Mrs Katie Saunders

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00807/FUL Mr Dave Lane Conversion of single dwelling (C3) and retail 

unit (A1) into two separate dwellings (C3)

100 Albert Road Plymouth PL2 1AF Miss Amy Thompson

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00820/FUL Plymouth City Council Change of use to events space (weddings, 

ceremonies, school events etc)

Mount Batten Tower Lawrence 

Road Plymouth PL9 9SJ 

Mr Alan Hartridge

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00862/FUL Mr & Mrs Willcocks Two storey rear extension and associated 

works (resubmission of 16/02228/FUL)

36 Trelawny Road Plympton 

Plymouth PL7 4LJ

Mrs Liz Wells

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00887/LBC Mr Ben Wilcox Glazed extension and insertion of spiral 

staircase

8 Boringdon Terrace Plymouth PL9 

9TQ

Mrs Kate Price

16 June 2017 Page 6 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00915/TPO Mr Roger Eyre Group G1 - fell Leylandii between Copper 

Beech and Cypress (no replacement 

required).

54 Southway Lane Widewell 

Plymouth PL6 7DL 

Mrs Jane Turner

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00919/TPO Ms Alex Cleeve Walnut - Fell 62B Larkham Lane Plymouth PL7 

4PN 

Mrs Jane Turner

02/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00958/FUL Mr & Mrs Vallint Rear extension and decking 5 St Margarets Road Plymouth PL7 

4RZ

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

02/06/2017 Prior Approval Not 

Required

17/01031/GP1 Mrs Debbie Pearce A single-storey rear extension which extends 

beyond the rear wall of the original 

dwellinghouse by 4m, has a maximum height 

of 3.7m, and has an eaves height of 2.7m

18 Church Way Plymouth PL5 1AQ Mr Chris Cummings

05/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00176/FUL Mr Andrew Downey Retrospective change of use to D1 (non-

residential institution) and D2 (assembly and 

leisure)

14 Manor Street Plymouth PL1 1TL Miss Amy Thompson

05/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00854/FUL Ms Lilian Owen Proposed conversion of redundant plant 

room into a two bedroom flat

237 Albert Road Plymouth  Miss Amy Thompson

06/06/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

16/02318/CDM Mr Bob Fish Condition Discharge: Conditions: 7, 13, 14, 15 

& 24 of application 15/01956/FUL.

North Prospect Phase 3, 

Wordsworth Road/Wordsworth 

Crescent Plymouth PL2 2NE

Mr Robert McMillan

06/06/2017 Condition Decision 

Split

17/00827/CDM Mr Colin Matthews Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 

application 16/02370/FUL

15 Frogmore Avenue Plymouth 

PL6 5XH

Miss Amy Thompson

16 June 2017 Page 7 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

06/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 16/02073/FUL Mr Andy Atkinson Demolition of fitness centre and construction 

of 10 self-contained flats to be used by 

Plymouth Deaf Association

Blake Lodge, Seymour Road 

Mannamead Plymouth PL3 5AS

Mr Jon Fox

06/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00821/LBC Plymouth City Council Refurbishment of walls & roof, improving 

drainage, new handrails, electrics & lighting 

and installation of external camera & 

weather station on roof

Mount Batten Tower Lawrence 

Road Plymouth PL9 9SJ 

Mr Alan Hartridge

07/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00152/FUL Mr Francis Westcott Creation of new sports pitches including 

engineering works of cut and fill to create a 

level platform to form the pitches and 

provision of 6 metre ball-catch netting

Parkway Sports And Social Club 

Ernesettle Lane Plymouth PL5 2EY

Mr Jon Fox

07/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00892/FUL Mr Terry Abel Rear extension 2 Deeble Close Plymouth PL7 4BR Miss Amy Thompson

07/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00935/FUL Mrs Jo James First floor side extension 24 Powderham Road Plymouth 

PL3 5SG

Mr Mike Stone

07/06/2017 Granted 

Conditionally subject 

to S106

16/02303/FUL Cavanna Homes 

(Devon) Limited

Erection of 16 dwellings including means of 

access, landscaping, drainage and associated 

works

Land Off Runway Road Plymouth 

PL6 8AL

Mr Robert McMillan

07/06/2017 Refused 17/00926/FUL Mr Ahmed Hussain Two storey rear extension to create three 

flats (Class C3) (resubmission of 

16/02269/FUL)

1 Crownhill Road Plymouth PL6 

5AG

Mr Mike Stone

08/06/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

16/01312/CDM Persimmon Homes 

Cornwall

Condition Discharge: Partial discharge of 

conditions 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 38, 39, 43, 44 & 

46 of application 12/02027/OUT in relation 

to phase 7 of the development

Land At Seaton Neighbourhood 

Plymouth

Mrs Olivia Wilson

16 June 2017 Page 8 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

08/06/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

16/02299/CDM Persimmon Homes 

Cornwall

Condition Discharge: Condition 2 of 

application 16/00601/REM

Land At Seaton Neighbourhood 

Plymouth

Mrs Olivia Wilson

08/06/2017 Condition Decision 

Split

16/02383/CDM Eop II Prop Co I S.A.R.L Condition Discharge: Conditions 17, 26 & 27 

of application 16/01102/S73

Legacy Plymouth International 

Hotel 270 Plymouth Road 

Plymouth PL6 8NH 

Mr Alistair Wagstaff

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00848/FUL Mr Michael Trim First floor front extension 31 Tor Road Plymouth PL3 5TF Mrs Alumeci Tuima

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00868/FUL Mr Alexander Moody Removal of chimney 1 Beyrout Place Plymouth PL1 4QY Mr Mike Stone

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00943/FUL Mr Ben May Front porch extension 4 Pollard Close Plymouth PL9 9RR Mrs Alumeci Tuima

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00954/FUL Kris Robertson First-floor side extension and rear 

conservatory

45 Shallowford Road Plymouth PL6 

5TL

Mr Chris Cummings

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00964/FUL Mr Denis Shea Garage to the side of property. 20 Leigh Court Plymouth PL6 5YA Mrs Liz Wells

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00966/FUL Mr & Mrs Rogers Two storey side extension, replacement rear 

extension and front extension

1 George Avenue Plymouth PL7 

2DB

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

16 June 2017 Page 9 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00975/FUL Mr James Burman First floor rear extension 21 Redhill Close Plymouth PL5 2RT Mrs Alumeci Tuima

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00984/FUL Mr San Bakker Side extension 1 Belle Vue Drive Plymouth PL9 

9QB

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00988/FUL Mr John Fenwick Single storey rear extension and front porch 28 Knapps Close Plymouth PL9 

8UY 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

08/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01010/FUL Mr Simon Davis Two storey side extension 14 Greenwood Park Road 

Plymouth PL7 2WE

Mr Chris Cummings

08/06/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/00997/PRDE Mr M Beaver Proposed conservatory 1 County Close Plymouth PL7 2UA Mrs Alumeci Tuima

12/06/2017  Report Issued 17/01101/ERS103 Rob Heard EIA Screening Land At William Prance Road 

Plymouth

Mr Alistair Wagstaff

12/06/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

16/02396/CDM Eop II Prop Co I S.A.R.L Condition Discharge: Conditions 3 & 4 of 

application 16/01100/FUL

Legacy Plymouth International 

Hotel 270 Plymouth Road 

Plymouth PL6 8NH 

Mr Alistair Wagstaff

12/06/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

17/00357/CDM Linden Sherford LLP Condition Discharge: Conditions 18, 19 & 20 

of application 15/00518/REM

Parcels K, P And Q "Sherford New 

Community" Land 

South/Southwest Of A38, Deep 

Lane And East Of Haye Road 

Mr Ian Sosnowski

16 June 2017 Page 10 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

12/06/2017 Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/01069/AMD Mr Michael Hourican Non-material minor ammendment: Change 

of paving colour for application 

15/00922/FUL.

67 Frank Cowl House  Park 

Avenue  Plymouth  PL1 4BG  

Mr Chris King

12/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00721/FUL Mr Michael Dawson Rear dormer 192 Pasley Street Plymouth PL2 

1DT 

Mr Mike Stone

12/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00747/LBC Mr D An Reduction of rear tenement to create 2no. 

off-road parking spaces, replacement of 

dilapidated doors and windows, and change 

of roof materials to natural slate

77 Embankment Road Plymouth 

PL4 9HX 

Mrs Jess Maslen

12/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00920/FUL Kim Knapman Amendments to existing vents opposite 

Chapel Street that include ancillary ground 

level alterations and a vented enclosure

Robbins Halls Of Residence Gibbon 

Street Plymouth PL4 8BZ 

Miss Amy Thompson

12/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00944/FUL Mr Nigel Ivor Llewellyn Decking and summerhouse (retrospective) 67 Budshead Road Plymouth PL5 

2PJ 

Mr Chris Cummings

12/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00949/FUL Commonwealth War 

Graves Commission

Installation of the temporary installation of 

the sculpture "Poppies: Wave" at the 

Plymouth Naval Memorial and two 

temporary cabins

The Hoe Hoe Road Plymouth  Mrs Kate Price

12/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00950/LBC Commonwealth War 

Graves Commission

Temporary installation of the "Poppies: 

Wave" sculpture at the Plymouth Naval 

Memorial & 2x temporary cabins

The Hoe Hoe Road Plymouth  Mrs Kate Price

12/06/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/01040/PRDE Mr & Mrs Lee Collis Side extension 24 Fanshawe Way Plymouth PL9 

9PW

Mr Chris Cummings

16 June 2017 Page 11 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

12/06/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/01072/PRDE Mr Kieran Scott Rear extension 20 Athenaeum Street Plymouth 

PL1 2RH

Mr Chris Cummings

12/06/2017 Refused 17/00992/FUL Mr & Mrs Leigh 

Spencer

Front extension (Re-submission of 

17/00498/FUL)

36 Mothecombe Walk Plymouth 

PL6 8RD

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

13/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00713/FUL Mr John McConnell Construction of artificial sports pitch with 

associated fencing and floodlights

Devonport High School For Boys  

Paradise Road Plymouth PL1 5QP

Mr Chris King

13/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00809/FUL Mr Aarron Meredith Install new artificial sports pitch over existing 

turfed pitch area to provide dedicated pitch 

facility with new fencing

Ernesettle Community School  

Biggin Hill Plymouth PL5 2RB

Mrs Katie Saunders

13/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00831/ADV Mr Joel Allen Illuminated signs to face of property 2 Barbican Approach Plymouth 

PL4 0LG

Mrs Jess Maslen

13/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00833/ADV Mr Joel Allen Illuminated signs to face of property 30 Commercial Road Plymouth PL4 

0LE

Mrs Jess Maslen

13/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00849/FUL Mr & Mrs Butler New dwelling with integral garage, raised 

deck and widening of driveway junction with 

Milford Land

Land At Milford Lane Tamerton 

Foliot Plymouth PL5 4LU

Miss Amy Thompson

13/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00951/ADV Commonwealth War 

Graves Commission

Advertisements on temporary cabins in 

association with temporary sculpture 

"Poppies: Wave"

The Hoe Hoe Road Plymouth  Mrs Kate Price

16 June 2017 Page 12 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

13/06/2017 Refused 17/00959/FUL Mr John Keating Detached garage with office space above 30 Ridge Road Plymouth PL7 1UF Mr Mike Stone

14/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00640/FUL Mr Andrew Cotterell Conversion of existing first floor 

accommodation into three one bedroom flats

The Grenville Hotel 82 - 84 

Grenville Road Plymouth PL4 9PZ 

Mrs Liz Wells

14/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00866/ADV Mr Stephen Robbins 1 x Advertising TV 2 St Stephens Place Plymouth PL7 

2ZN

Mrs Jess Maslen

14/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00894/ADV Coffee#1 Limited 1 Illuminated  Fascia Sign & 1 Hanging Sign. 66 Ridgeway Plymouth PL7 2AL Mrs Jess Maslen

14/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00925/FUL Mr & Mrs MW Couch Demolition of existing single storey extension 

and erection of two storey extension

35 Moorland Avenue Plymouth 

PL7 2DA

Miss Amy Thompson

14/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00931/FUL Mr & Mrs A Wise Side extension to garage 37 Durwent Close Plymouth PL9 

9TP 

Miss Amy Thompson

14/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01032/FUL Mr Steve Thomas Front garage extension and rear extension 

and conversion of existing garage to store 

(amendments to 17/00812/FUL).

14 Buena Vista Gardens Plymouth 

PL6 7JG 

Mr Mike Stone

15/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00828/FUL Bryoni Carter Side extension and new driveway and rear 

extension

58 Elburton Road Plymouth PL9 

8JG 

Mr Mike Stone

16 June 2017 Page 13 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

15/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00928/FUL Mr & Mrs Jon Spicer Single storey rear extension with raised path 4 Campion Close Plymouth PL7 

2WT

Miss Amy Thompson

15/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00999/FUL Mr Sarah Hyatt Formation of new entrances and access 

ramps and internal alterations

45 Regent Street Plymouth PL4 8BB Mrs Liz Wells

15/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01026/FUL Mr Kenneth Roberts Rear extension 20 Laira Park Crescent Plymouth 

PL4 7HS

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

15/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01039/FUL Mr & Mrs Button First floor rear extension 3 Woodford Road Plymouth PL6 

7HX

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

15/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01045/ADV Stonegate Various signage Noahs Ark  32A Courtenay Street 

Plymouth PL1 1EP

Mr Mike Stone

15/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01053/FUL Mr & Mrs N Wellington Two storey side and single rear extension 68 The Mead Plymouth PL7 4HT Mrs Alumeci Tuima

15/06/2017 Refused 17/00995/FUL Mr J Watts Two storey rear extension 201 Old Laira Road Plymouth PL3 

6BW 

Mr Mike Stone

15/06/2017 Refused 17/01050/FUL Matthew Crudgington Side extension at first floor level 4 Elford Drive Plymouth PL9 7ND Mr Mike Stone

16 June 2017 Page 14 of 15



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

15/06/2017 Refused 17/01066/FUL Mr William Brook Rear and side extension with front porch 

(resubmission of application 17/00297/FUL)

4 Cressbrook Close Plymouth PL6 

8RX

Mrs Liz Wells

16/06/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

17/01151/CDM Ms Alison Hicks Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 

application 17/00236/FUL

University Of St Mark And St John  

Plymbridge Lane Plymouth PL6 8BH

Mrs Katie Saunders

16/06/2017 Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/01142/AMD D.U.K.E. Properties 

(Marsh Mills) Ltd And 

Next

Non material minor amendment: Minor 

alterations to the approved car park layout 

(including relocation of sub-station), minor 

change to approved roof plan and minor 

changes to elevations involving repositioning 

of signage zones for application 

15/01831/FUL

Land At Former Unit J, St Modwen 

Road Marsh Mills Plymouth PL6 8LJ

Mr Alistair Wagstaff

16/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00940/FUL Mr J Newcombe First floor side extension, porch and 

replacement double garage with playroom 

above

39 Warleigh Crescent Plymouth 

PL6 5BS 

Miss Amy Thompson

16/06/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01088/ADV MRH Limited Various illuminated and non-illuminated 

signage including 5 fascia, 3 hanging and 2 

free standing signs.

Landmark Filling Station  Forder 

Valley Road Plymouth PL6 8LE

Mrs Liz Wells

16 June 2017 Page 15 of 15





App no Decision Address Proposal Case Officer Appeal Type Decision Date Synopsis

16/00163/FUL
ALLOWED WITH 

CONDITIONS

LAND ADJACENT PLUMER ROAD
, 

PLYMOUTH, 
PL6 5DZ

Residential development of two apartment 

blocks containing a total of 61 apartments, 

undercroft parking, landscaping & associated 

works

Katie Saunders Inquiry 17/05/2017

The appeal was allowed as the Inspector considered that whilst the issue of impact on residential amenity was a 

subjective matter, on balance the effect of the development on the outlook of existing residents in The Limes was not 

unreasonable.  In terms of the parking reason for refusal the Inspector noted no evidence was submitted by the council 

to demonstrate that the development would significantly increase the demand for on-street parking.  The Inspector 

considered existing residents would not be seriously inconvenienced by the proposal and whilst no resident has the 

right to park on the street, space was still likely to remain during evenings and weekends.  The Inspector therefore 

considers  that the development accords with Policy CS28 and CS34 of the Core Strategy.  The Inspector agreed with 

the conditions suggested by the LPA and a S106 was secured delivering an off-site contribution towards affordable 

housing, highways improvements, greenspace and playspace.

The LPA made a claim for partial costs against the 

appellant for the changed position put forward on affordable housing and the appellant made a claim for a full award 

of costs again the LPA based on the fact that there were no technical objections to the proposal and the development 

was policy compliant.  The Inspector found that the LPAs consideration of outlook was reasonable, however, given the 

lack of evidence to support the parking reason for refusal, this was considered as unreasonable behaviour and a partial 

award of costs against the council was made.  However, the Inspector also agreed that the appellant had acted 

unreasonably departing from their previously agreed position on affordable housing and a partial award of costs was 

made against the appellant.



16/01916/FUL DISMISSED
63 CHURCH ROAD
PLYMSTOCK
, PLYMOUTH, 


PL9 9AT

Vehicle hardstanding and access onto 

classified road (retrospective)
Liz Wells Written Representations 17/05/2017

Planning permission was refused for a retrospective vehicle hardstanding and access onto classified road.

The Inspector 

supported the Councils view that the development, in the absence of an appropriate turning facility, would be likely to 

have a severe adverse impact upon highway safety along Church Road in conflict with the NPPF and policies CS28 and 

CS34 insofar as they relate to the safety and suitability of an access, agreeing with policies referred to in the LPA 

refusal.

The Inspector noted that although Church Road ends as a cul-de-sac, No 63 is positioned where vehicles passing 

and heading south can make an onward journey by turning into a number of other roads before Church Road reaches 

its terminal point. He saw during the time of his visit that this part of Church Road was fairly frequently accessed by 

through traffic. His concern was further compounded by the absence of any visibility splays for vehicles emerging from 

the appeal site due to the high and solid boundary enclosures that adjoin the edge of the highway to either side. 

He 

considered the other examples of frontage parking along this road with no turning facilities but found none directly 

comparable to the appeal property in terms of their location or sight lines provided. Neither were there other 

examples in such numbers as to demonstrate drivers would be familiar with cars reversing onto the road.

No 

applications were made for costs by either side and no costs were awarded by the Inspector.

16/02044/FUL DISMISSED 58 COOMBE WAY
, PLYMOUTH, 
PL5 2HB
Retrospective application for raised decking 

and screening

Amy 

Thompson
Written Representations 17/05/2017

Planning permission was refused for a retrospective application for raised decking and screening as it was considered 

to be contrary to Local Development Framework Core Strategy Policies CS02 Design and CS34 Planning Application 

Considerations. It was also considered contrary to guidance contained in the Councils Design Guidelines Supplementary 

Planning Document, policy 30 of the emerging , PLYMOUTH,  Plan Part One and Paragraphs 64 to 66 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework.

Having reviewed the application, and visited the site, the Inspector supported the Councils 

view that, given the design and size of the decking and screening, it would have an unacceptable effect on the living 

conditions of the neighbouring properties, specifically privacy and outlook. The Inspector also noted that given the 

characteristics and the topography of the area, the decking and screening would appear overtly prominent and out of 

keeping.

No applications were made for costs by either side and no costs were awarded by the Inspector.

Planning  Appeals 




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Voting Schedule 1 June 2017

	6.1 North West Quadrant, Derriford Road, Plymouth, PL6 8DH - 17/00105/FUL
	7 Planning Application Decisions Issued
	8 Appeal Decisions

